Answers to Industry Comments/Questions on the Draft Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II Draft Statement of Work, dated 9/23/2011, Draft RFP posted 3/30/2012 and Industry Day 4/12/2012

201. Reference M.5 Cost Evaluation Factor, p. 183

Comment: “Both the proposed and probable cost assessment will be presented to the Source Selection Authority, along with the proposed FFP Phase-in price and any cost risk associated with Attachment J-4.”
Question:  Would the government consider providing a plug-in or ceiling cost for phase-in to ensure that all bidders are on a level-playing field?
   
 Answer:   No, the Government does not intend to provide a plug-in or ceiling price for phase-in period, as offerors will likely have different approaches for phase-in.
202.  Reference Section L.24 1., Cost Volume – Instructions, p. 164

Comment: The requirement for providing escalation reads, “The escalation proposed for labor must be stated along with the actual escalation experienced in the last three years. Provide a statement of rationale, including the derivation, for the proposed escalation rates. If escalation is not proposed, explain why. The Offeror shall also discuss the rationale for any escalation proposed for the other cost elements. The Offeror shall also include the company's escalation history for each other cost element experienced in the past three years.”

Question:  Would the government consider providing a plug-in cost for escalation apart from what is required in the collective bargaining agreements? Escalation might be lower for some companies in lesser competitive, financially stressed market areas, giving them an advantage over small businesses who compete in more competitive market areas and therefore have high escalation rates.
   Answer:  No, the Government does not intend to provide a plug-in escalation rates.  Offerors will need to use their specific bidding approach but they will all be bidding for the same  locality. 

209.    In recent NASA solicitations set-aside for small business, there has been a requirement for how the potential small business prime contractor will handle the “ostensible subcontractor” issue, an Ostensible Subcontractor plan.  Essentially how the small business prime, who will have subcontractors almost certainly, will prove that they have the capability to manage this contract on their own, and are not unreasonably dependent on a subcontractor to perform the contract. 

a.
Question: Will there be a requirement for potential small business prime to submit such a plan with their proposal?  

                           Answer:  No, there will not be a requirement for an Ostensible Subcontractor plan.

b.
Question: If there is such a requirement for the Ostensible Subcontractor plan, will the instructions covering preparation of the plan be posted in the draft RFP?  Will the instructions explain how such a plan will be evaluated?

                           Answer:  N/A to each question.
c.
Question: Who would review the acceptability of the Ostensible Subcontractor plan?  Would the Small Business Administration be involved in such a review?  

                           Answer:  N/A to each question.
d.
Question: Since this is a small business set-aside, the “Limitations on Subcontracting” clause is in the draft solicitation.  Will the small business prime be required to perform 50% of the work with their employees for all tasks?  Or will the 50% requirement apply over the life of the contract? 

 
            Answer:  Yes.  The small business prime is required to perform at least 50 percent of the cost of contract performance incurred for employees of the concern.  Per FAR Part 9.104-3, consideration of a prime contractor’s compliance with limitations on subcontracting shall take into account the time period covered by the contract base period or quantities plus option periods or quantities, if such options are considered when evaluating offers for award.   

e.
Question: Will the prime contractor’s compliance with the “Limitations on Subcontracting” clause be verified?  If so, how often will that compliance check be performed?  Every six months; every year?  Who will verify compliance?

      
             Answer:  Yes.  Contractor compliance during contract performance will be verified and monitored on a regular basis throughout the life the contract. 

225.  SOW 1.3.5.2, Property Management – 

a. Question: How large and how many stock items are under consideration?  

   
      Answer:  Stock maintained and managed under SOW 1.3.5.2 is the stock the Contractor determines as necessary to meet their requirements under the WICC SOW.  It is at the Contractor’s discretion, depending on their business approach, how large and how many stock items to maintain.   See Attachment J-2 Section 15.2.1 for facilities stock requisitions and actual line items per year.

b. Question: How much of the stock items are consumed annually?  

    
      Answer:  See Attachment J-2 Section 15.2.1 for facilities stock requisitions and actual line items per year and the historical ODCs file in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html. 

231.  SOW 3.2.2 Computerized Maintenance Management System (Category 1)
Question: What other software and/or databases does MAXIMO interface with? 
 Answer:   Currently MAXIMO interfaces with WIIMS and the contractor’s financial system.

248.  Section L.16.i, Page 145

Requirement: Existing available Government property listed in the provision at 1852.245-81 is provided “as is”.
Question: What is the condition of property listed as Government furnished in Attachment J-3?
  Answer:  The property listed under Attachment J-3 is considered usable for its intended needs.  In addition, the final RFP will be revised to delete Section L.16(i). 
254. Question:  Will the Government be conducting discussions, presentations, or including questions and answers in the schedule?   

Answer:  The schedule does allow for discussions, which would be held in accordance with FAR 15.306(d) if required.  Other than the Industry Day which was conducted 4/12/12, there are no additional presentations anticipated.  Any questions submitted will be answered and must be provided to the Contracting Officer, Therese Patterson, Therese.L.Patterson@nasa.gov in writing.     

256.  Technical Library Spec 7.3.b, page 70 of 179 and Spec 8.0, Environmental Management Support Services Requirement: Page 70 of 179 in the SOW1 located in the Technical Library, 7.3.b. references PCBs in transformers. 
a.  Question: Is there a list of Transformers within WFF that still contains PCBs?
               Answer:  No. There are no transformers at WFF containing PCBs.  The WICC II SOW 7.2(g) references analysis for PCBs in transformer oil.  Occasionally the lab may be requested to test some mission equipment just to verify that PCBs are not contained in the oil.  For clarification, the SOW referenced in the technical library is the current WICC.  
b. Question: How will disposal of PCBs be addressed if found?
               Answer:  Disposal of PCBs will be handled in accordance with SOW 8.2.6.

261.  Technical Library Spec 15.7, Purchasing and Acquisition

Requirement: The Contractor shall be required to establish and maintain a purchasing system to support procurement of materials and services not obtained via AMMS for NASA. This system must be capable of incorporating general and special provisions, including but not limited to: requisitions requiring prior customer approval, vendor estimated delivery dates, competitive bids, quality assurance requirements, such as special soldering clauses, warranty negotiations, expediting, blanket purchase orders, vendor ratings, quantity price breaks, shipments directly to the customer, and high dollar subcontracts for both common and unique items. The Contractor must have in place a system to support short-deadline commercial procurements required by customers. 

a. Question: What is the AMMS for NASA?

       Answer:  Clarification, the vendor, in the question above, is referencing a requirement from the current WICC I statement of work not a requirement from the statement of work for WICC II that was issued with the DRFP.  The Advanced Materials Management System (AMMS) is an Oracle web-based application used to provide supplies to GFSC Greenbelt and Wallops as well as NASA Headquarters. Customers may access the AMMS Order Entry screen to place orders for various types of supplies that are in the AMMS catalog including items stocked in the Building 16W Stores Stock Warehouse at Greenbelt, items delivered Just-In-Time by another vendor, fuels and gases. AMMS is also the principal in-house tool that the NASA’s Information Management Division uses to purchase un-stocked items and maintains warehouse inventories at Greenbelt and Wallops.

b. Question: Is there a list of materials services through AMMS for NASA available? 

       Answer: No, there is no list of materials that can be made available primarily due to the size of catalogue.  Attachment J-2, Section 15.2.1 of the current DRFP provides information on number of requisitions and line items processed.  In addition, SOW Section 15.2 dated March 30, 2012 clarifies that, “The Stores Stock at WFF is primarily comprised of fuels (gasoline, diesel), Just In Time (JIT) office supplies, compressed gases, and paper.” 

c. Question:  Can the NAVFAC System for the Navy be used by the Contractor to support WFF requirements?

        
        Answer:   No.  All systems used for ordering materials are tied to NASA systems.  
266.  Hazardous Waste Transportation

Requirement: WFF has an EPA Hazardous Waste Transporters Permit with transport activities being managed by the on-site contractor. In 2005 the DOT Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) promulgated requirements (required 1 Jan. 2005) that a Hazardous Materials (HM) Transporter, that transports Classed Explosives (rocket motor casing containing greater than 55 lbs of explosives), to have a Federal HM Safety Permit.  

Question: Where can this Permit, Form MCS-150, be found at WFF as well as the supporting records to illustrate operator and vehicle safety competency?

   Answer:  Per 49 CFR 107.606(a1), Federal entities are exempt from the requirement to obtain a Federal HM Safety Permit for the transport of hazardous materials.
269.  Clause I.167, page 92, Draft RFP

Question: Please clarify the intent of the Clause set forth at I.167.  Is it NASA's intent to severely restrict competition by requiring that a contractor remain within the SB program prior to exercise of any option? Many small businesses have developed long standing, contractually binding working relations with large businesses.  These relationships take considerable time and effort to mature.  The goal of the small business program is to assist small businesses in maturing into viable larger businesses.  If the requirement is for the offeror to remain within the SB program for the performance period of the contract, the effect will, of necessity, greatly restrict competition.  Many small businesses, with the qualifications and resources required to perform the SOW issued March 30, 2012, will graduate during the 7 year performance period of the contract.  

               Answer:  No, it is not NASA's intent to severely restrict competition by requiring that a contractor remain within the SB program prior to exercise of any option. There is NO requirement for a contractor to remain a small business for “long-term” contracts, as defined in FAR 19.301-2 (a) Definition. FAR Part 19.301-2 Rerepresentation by a contractor that represented itself as a small business concern (b), requires that a contractor rerepresent its size status for the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code in the contract upon certain occurrences: execution of a novation agreement, merger or acquisition of the contractor, and long-term contracts.  In the occurrence of the long-term contract, the contractor is required to rerepresent itself  - (1) within 60 to 120 days prior to the end of the fifth year of the contract; and (2) within 60 to 120 days prior to the data specified in the contract for exercising any option thereafter. 
270.  Section L (b) Proposal Content and Page Limitations, Page 149 Cost Forms 

Reference: (2) A page is defined as one side of a sheet, 8-1/2" x 11", with at least one inch margins on all sides, using not smaller than 12 point type Times New Roman font.

a. Question: The Draft RFP provided cost forms contain font that does not meet the section L requirements. Is the offeror required to change the font type and size to meet the Section L requirements?
Answer:  No, the page limitations do not apply to the cost volume with the exception of the Basis of Estimates (BOEs).
b. Question:  The cost forms provided with the Draft RFP do not have the required one inch margins. Is the offeror required to have all cost forms meet the one inch margin?  
     Answer:  See answer to a. above.
c. Question:  Several Exhibits within the Cost File have been condensed for printing. Is it acceptable for the cost forms to be reduced in order to fit the required columns within one page?

     Answer:  No, exhibits do not need to fit into 1 page.  Page limitation does not apply to the cost volume (except for the BOEs).  
271. Reference: SOW 11.7.9 Other Emergency Services, page 139 states, “Other emergencies such as confined space rescue, high angle rescue, and water rescues may be required during the duration of this contract.
a. Question: Are these core services or IDIQ type services?

       Answer:  SOW 11.7.9 Other Emergency Services are core services. 

b.  Question: What levels of certifications are required for the following: confined space rescue, high angular rescue, and water rescue?
 
      Answer: For confined space, the Contractor shall have a team certified to the Technician level per NFPA 1670.  For high angle rescue, the Contractor shall have personnel certified to Rope Rescue Level II per NFPA 1006.  For water rescue, the Contractor shall have a team certified to the Awareness level per NFPA 1670.  SOW 11.7.9 will be modified to add these requirements.  NFPA 1006 and 1670 have been added to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html. 
272.
    Reference: SOW 11.7.5 Hazardous Material Spills, page 136 states, “A minimum of 10 personnel shall maintain HAZMAT training and certification to be on the HAZMAT Team. 

a. Question: What levels of HAZMAT certification and training are required for the Hazmat Team personnel?

         Answer: All HAZMAT Team personnel are required to meet the certifications for the State of Virginia which requires training to be certified to the HAZMAT technician level.  
b. Question: What are the current certification levels of the existing Fire and Emergency Services workforce? 

       
          Answer: The current WICC contract, under SOW 11.7.8.1, requires personnel certified in their respective areas of responsibility in all emergency response scenarios and also requires that sufficient certified personnel be on board to handle all of the emergency response scenarios at each Fire Station.  Current personnel meet the criteria defined in NFPA for the various job levels (i.e. Firefighter 1, Advanced Life Support, etc.).    Also see Firefighters CBA found in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

273.   Reference: Attachment J-3 - List of Installation Accountable Government Property, PAGE 130, a number of non-personal items and equipment are not included on the list of Government Property provided, such as SCBAs for use by Fire and Emergency Services personnel.  

Question: Does the Government intend to provide a revised, more detail list of Government Property items or is it the contractor’s responsibility to provide required equipment or items not listed?

 Answer:  No, the Government does not intend to provide a more detailed Attachment J-3 (IAGP).  However, Attachment J-3 will be updated to add new IAGP (for example, a new ambulance was recently acquired).  It will be the Contractor’s responsibility to provide required equipment and items not in included in Attachment J-3.  Per SOW 11.10.4, it is the Contractor’s responsibility to provide all gear such as Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA)s.  Items such as SCBAs are considered gear, not equipment and therefore are not included in Attachment J-3.   Any supplies or gear on hand on day one of the contract will be provided to the Contractor.  For SOW 11, lists of supplies (with inventory dates) have been placed in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

274.
Reference: Attachment J-3 - List of Installation Accountable Government Property.  This list shows two ambulances with Acquisition Dates of 6/30/1997 and 07/08/1997.  

 Question: Is it the Government or contractor’s responsibility to obtain the required licenses, certification, maintenance, and fuel for these ambulances?
   Answer:  The Government will provide vehicle licenses (registration /tags) for vehicles provided as IAGP and listed in Attachment J-3.  The Government will also provide fuel for all IAGP and Contractor owned vehicles used in the performance of the WICC II statement of work.  Clause G.6, INSTALLATION ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNMENT PROPERTY, will be revised to include fuels (gas, diesel) as IAGP.  The Contractor is responsible for maintenance of all IAGP per SOW 1.3.5 GOVERNMENT REAL AND OTHER PROPERTY MANAGEMENT.  The ambulances do not require certification by the State of Virginia.

276. Reference: SOW 11.3.1 Routine, p 132 states, The Contractor shall  (a) Provide emergency response services at WFF on a 24 hours/day, 7 days/week, 52 weeks/year basis (365/366 days per year), including all holidays.

a. Question: What shift configuration is currently utilized on the fire and emergency response services portion of this contract?
                   Answer:  The CBA for Emergency Services is posted in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html and includes information on shift configurations.

b. Question: Are Dispatch Services a core or IDIQ function of the fire and emergency services portion of this contract?
                Answer:  There will be no dispatch services in the WICC II contract as either core or IDIQ (currently performed under SOW 10).  The dispatch function for both emergency services and protective services will be performed by a separate Protective Services contractor.

277.  Request:  Please provide an Emergency Services seniority list.

            Answer: We are not able to provide an Emergency Services seniority list.  

278. Reference: SOW 11.4 Staffing, p 133 states, (d) Ensure that contract employees assigned to the positions that will be required to provide emergency services to building V10/V20, building V24 and building R30 possess a Secret security clearance as of the first day of the contract.

a.  Question: Are buildings V10/V20, V24 and R30 Navy buildings?

                   Answer:  Yes.

b.  Question: Does the existing staff currently have the required Secret security clearance? 

                  Answer:  Yes, existing staff supporting SOW 11 are currently required to have Secret security clearances.

c.   Question: Will the Government accept interim Secret security clearances on day one of the contract for newly hired personnel until their Secret clearance is obtained or finalized?

                    Answer:  Yes.   

           d. Question: Whose responsibility is it, the Government’s or the Contractor’s, for the costs associated with obtaining the required Secret security clearance for these personnel?

   
    Answer:  The Contractor is responsible for the costs associated with obtaining required Secret security clearances.

279.
Reference: SOW 11.8.5 Fire Education, page 143 states, The Contractor shall provide training/education to all WFF personnel . . .

a. Question: What is the frequency of such training/education?

     Answer:  The required frequency is listed in Attachment J-2, Section 11.8.5.
            b. Question: Who is responsible for the cost of materials and supplies associated with these training/education sessions?
         
     Answer:  The Contractor is responsible for the cost of all materials and supplies.
           c. Question: How many WFF personnel attend each training/education session?

                 Answer:  The general fire education training is open to all personnel and there is no attendance restrictions.  Due to the nature of the classes, the fire extinguisher and CPR/AED training is limited to 9 people.
280.
Reference: SOW 11.9.3 Aircraft Mishap Response (WFF Based Aircraft and Others), page 145

Question: Is it permissible to cross staff the ARFF vehicle.
  Answer:  Yes it is permissible; it is up to the Contractor to manage staff to meet the SOW requirements.  
281.
Reference: Attachment J-3 List of installation Accountable Government Property, page 130, includes the following: 2 Fire Trucks, 2 Fire Crash Rescue Trucks, and 2 Fire Pumper Trucks.

a.
Question: Please define the specific emergency apparatus indentified in Reference Attachment J-3. 

    Answer:  A document with photos of the emergency response vehicles listed in Attachment J-3 (IAGP) and details for the vehicles, including capabilities, has been placed in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

b.
Question: Please provide the specific classification In Accordance with (IAW) NFPA the category of the (2) Fire Trucks listed.

      

Answer:   We do not have a NFPA classification. 

c.
Question: Are of these vehicles aerial apparatus with rate ladders?

Answer:  No.

d.
Question: Is either of these Fire Trucks equipped with a rated fire pump?

Answer:  Yes, both have rated fire pumps. 

e.
Question: If they are aerial devices, are they ladders or platforms?

Answer:  N/A.

f.
Question: If the Fire Trucks are aerials, are the annul certification(s) current?

Answer:  N/A.

g.
Question: Does either of these vehicles qualify as Mobile Water Supply IAW NFPA?

 Answer:  No.

h.
 Question: Is either of the Fire Trucks a Rescue Vehicle IAW with NFPA classification? If so, what are the classifications? 

      

  Answer:  No.

i.
Question: Do all vehicles carry the required NFPA recommendation of equipment?

     

  Answer:  Yes the main engines do carry the required NFPA recommendation of equipment; however, the reserve engines do not.  Information is provided in the technical library for the equipment carried on the main engines.  There is no equipment list for the reserve engines.

j.
Question: Who is responsible, the Government or the Contractor, for the cost of licenses, certification, registration, maintenance, and fuel for the operation of the fire and emergency vehicles?

Answer: The Government will provide vehicle licenses (tags and registration) for vehicles provided as IAGP and listed in Attachment J-3.  The Government will also provide fuel for all IAGP and Contractor owned vehicles used in the performance of the WICC II statement of work.  Clause G.6, INSTALLATION ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNMENT PROPERTY, will be revised to include fuel as IAGP.  The Contractor is responsible for maintenance of all IAGP per SOW 1.3.5 GOVERNMENT REAL AND OTHER PROPERTY MANAGEMENT. Fire and emergency response vehicles do not require certifications.
283.  Reference: Section L.24 Cost Volume, 2(d) Elements of Cost by SOW WBS Level 3, page 165, instructs offerors to show direct labor hours, direct hourly rates, direct labor costs, by each individual category by month, for the base period and each individual option period, at WBS Level 3.

The spreadsheet provided in “Exhibit 2 Cost Sum WBS OP Level 3” only includes columns to be populated with cost data for a period of 18 months; however, Option Period 1 and Option Period 2 each consist of a 24-months. 

a. Question: Which is correct, 18 or 24 months?

                   Answer:  Exhibit 2 is to be used for Base and Option Periods.  The Base Period is 18 months, Options 1 and 2 are 24 months each and Option 3 is 18 months (for a total of a 7 year period of performance).  

b. Question: What is the Government’s recommended approach to offerors for populating the provided spreadsheet?   

       Answer:  Exhibit 2 for the Base Period must be populated for 18 months and Options 1 and 2 must be populated for a 24 month period and Exhibit 2 for Option 3 must be populated for an 18 month period   The final RFP, Exhibit 2 will be revised to include a note with instructions for Options.
291.
Reference: SOW11.13.4, page 152, Test, Training & Exercise (TT&E)

Question: Are the Exercise Tolerance Tests performed onsite at the medical clinic or as a referral? 

 
  Answer:   The Contractor can use their discretion of where to perform the Exercise Tolerance Test but they are allowed to use onsite services (per SOW 9.3.1).

292.
Reference: Att J-3, page 130, Draft Installation Accountable Government Property (IAGP) List

Question: Will the government please provide the IAGP list by location?
  
  Answer:  The Government will revise Attachment J-3 for the final RFP to include location.

302.  Reference: DRFP, page 158, L.23.3.A, third bullet on the page: “Customer Satisfaction – Interactive and timely customer support…:

Question: This goal is entitled “Customer Satisfaction;” however, on page 179 in M.4.1.B, last paragraph on that page, this goal is called “Customer Service.” Which is correct? (Also, the fourth goal is called “Best Value” in Section L; however, in Section M it is called “Best Value Effectiveness”.) Which is correct?

 Answer:  The third goal is “Customer Satisfaction”.  Section L.23.3-Subfactor B and Section M.4.1-Subfactor B will be revised to change the wording FROM: “Customer Service” TO: “Customer Satisfaction”.  The fourth goal is “Best Value Effectiveness”.  Section L.23.3-Subfactor B and Section M.4.1.B will be revised to change the wording FROM:  “Best Value” TO:  “Best Value Effectiveness”.  These sections will be revised in the final RFP.

312.  Reference: DRFP, Attachment J-1, SOW Section 1.1:  “WIIMS is currently integrated with the Government’s existing CMMS”.  
Question: Does this integration consist only of the nightly labor hours/material costs refresh stated in the Industry Day Presentation? 
  Answer:  No, the integration also includes the pulling of a significant amount of data from the CMMS into WIIMS to produce automatic reporting.  Reporting can be to support contract requirements, performance metric tracking, and program/project management.  Reporting may be for core services as well as IDIQ task orders.
313.  Reference: DRFP 

Question: Will the contractor have to procure licenses for the commercial software applications that are integrated into the WIIMs System or will user privileges be covered under NASA’s licenses for those applications?  Examples are Maximo, Crystal Reports, ARCHIBUS, ExtraFleet 2000, GasBoy. 

  Answer:  If the software is listed in the SOW as Government provided, then no licenses will need to be procured by the Contractor.

314.  Reference: DRFP 

Question: ARCHIBUS and Maximo have a broad set of functional capabilities, not all of which are being used at WFF in all likelihood.  What functions of ARCHIBUS and Maximo are currently being used at WFF? 
  Answer:  ARCHIBUS will not be implemented until June of 2012 at WFF.  When implemented, ARCHIBUS will be used for building space utilization tracking and planning.   See answer to Question 132 for the Maximo modules currently in use.  

322.  Reference SOW 1.2.2. The referenced paragraph seems to require a staffed work reception activity (Help Desk) 24/7/365.  
Question:  Will it be acceptable for the contractor to designate other activities working on the base 24/7/365 to receive after hour emergency calls and respond accordingly OR must work reception (Help Desk) be staffed 24/7/365?  Please clarify.
  Answer:  It is up to the Offerors to propose an approach that meets the requirements of the SOW.

323.  Reference SOW 1.2.2.  “Routine trouble calls are defined as those that are estimated to be less than 20 hours or $2,000.”  
a. Question:  Does the $2,000 include labor and material?  Please clarify.

      Answer:  Yes, the $2,000 includes labor and materials.  SOW 1.2.1 will be revised to reflect Routine trouble calls are defined as those that are estimated to be less than 20 hours or $2,000 (including labor and materials).

b.   Question:   Is work over 20 hours and/or $2,000 considered out of scope?  How are such work requirements handled?  Please clarify.

     Answer:  No.  Work over 20 hours and/or $2,000 is not out of scope.  Work over 20 hours and/or $2,000 is considered repairs under SOW 3 core services.  Note:  Per SOW 1.2.2, emergency work is usually a response-type work effort and due to its nature, is not restricted as are routine trouble calls.  
324.  Reference SOW 1.2.2 and Attachment J-2, section 3.1.  

Question:  How many after normal business hour emergency trouble calls can the contractor expect annually?  Please clarify.

 Answer:  Based on CY 2011, there were approximately 225 NASA and 45 Navy after normal business hour emergency trouble calls.  Please note that this is only an estimate based on historical numbers, and actual numbers may vary.

325.  Reference SOW 2.5 and Attachment J-2 Section 2.5.  Paragraphs b and c under the Requirement section state: “Provide Architectural/Engineering Planning services…..”  Workload data in J-2 indicates 30 projects per year of various sizes.  Provide Architectural/Engineering Planning services is a less than definitive basis for estimating staffing needs.  “Planning” can include a very wide range of services demanded by the customer or based on the nature of the project.  

Question:  Can the government provide any additional information that would clarify the skills and levels necessary?

  Answer:  SOW 2.5 provides a list of requirements.  Attachment J-2 section 2.5 provides a number of projects with associated construction dollar ranges.  This is our best information available as the projects vary annually.  All requirements of SOW 2.5 may be required for all the projects listed (number of projects with associated construction dollar ranges) in Attachment J-2 section 2.5.

326.  Reference SOW 2.9 and subparagraphs thereof.  
Question: Does the Government issue a task order to the prime contractor covering “Construction Management and Inspection Services” for multiple projects over a period of time OR are task orders for construction management and inspection issued on a project by project basis?  Please clarify how construction management will be facilitated under the IDIQ provisions.

  Answer: Task orders for Construction Management and Inspection Services are generally issued on a project by project basis.
327.  Reference SOW 3.2.1 paragraph j and others.  The referenced paragraph refers to “repairs” and “trouble calls”.  While a trouble call is somewhat defined in the SOW (< 20 Hrs or $2,000), repairs are not defined.  

Question:  What is the distinction between a repair and a trouble call in terms of labor hours and dollars and the type of work?  Please clarify.

  Answer:  As stated in SOW 3.1, NPR 8831.2, defines the service categories of repairs and trouble calls.  Work beyond the labor hours or dollar limits of a routine trouble call become a repair.  There is no restriction on level of effort for repairs.  Per NPR 8831.2, a repair is facility work required to restore a facility or component, including collateral equipment, to a condition substantially equivalent to its originally intended and designed capacity, efficiency, or capability. It includes the substantially equivalent replacements of utility systems and collateral equipment necessitated by incipient or actual breakdown.  It includes restoration of function, usually after failure.  However, there can be planned repairs.  Per NPR 8831.2, a planned repair is performed prior to failure. Material condition degradation, usually identified through PM, PT&I, or other inspection, is repaired to prevent catastrophic failure.

328.  Reference SOW 3.2.1.1.  
Question:  How many ROI, PGM, repairs and trouble calls for the mission critical facilities (IDIQ) will the contractor be expected to perform annually?  Please clarify.
Answer:  IDIQ requirements vary annually depending on many factors.  IDIQ tasks from 2011 are included in the technical library for review located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
329.  Reference SOW 3.5.1 d.  

        Question:  Are after normal business hour calls to Navy Facilities generally converted to an IDIQ task order the following day and after completion of the work?  Please clarify how this process works.

Answer:  We intend to issue IDIQ task(s) at contract award to allow the Contractor to perform after normal business hours trouble calls for the Navy buildings under SOW 3.2.1.1.  Therefore, no work will need to be converted to an IDIQ task the following day after completion.  See SOW 3.1.b and SOW 3.2.1.1 for Navy core and IDIQ services, respectively. 
332.  Reference SOW 11.4 b, 11.7.3 a.  

         Question:  Is EMT-Enhanced the maximum level of ALS that is required on site? 

Answer:  Yes, EMT-Enhanced is the maximum level of Advanced Life Support (ALS) that is required on site.

333.  Reference SOW 11.  

a.  Question:  Is there a core-requirement communications center located in one of the fire department facilities that receives emergency calls and dispatches emergency responders?  If so, in which facility?  If not in a fire facility, where is it located?  Emergency response communications center staffing is 24/7/365--is this correct?

     Answer:  No, there is no core requirement for an emergency response communications center.  All emergency calls and dispatches will be handled by the Protective Services contractor

 b.  Question:  Is the Emergency Operations Center reference in 11.13.2.2 different in function and location from the fire department communications center?  Please clarify.

                   Answer:  Yes, the Emergency Operations Center and fire department communications center.  The Emergency Operations Center is a NASA managed facility that is staffed only in the event of an existing or potential emergency such as hurricane or launch.
337.  Reference SOW 15.8.  

         Question:  Will government-provided fuel be available for contractor furnished vehicles and equipment?  Please clarify.

Answer:  Yes.  Clause G.6 will be revised to add vehicle fuels (gas, diesel).  See also answer to Question #274.

338.  Reference SOW 15.8.1.3 b.  “Arrange for commercial repair services when repair requirements are beyond Contractor’s in-house capability.”  Historical or projected workload for commercial repairs was not provided.  There is no basis from which an offeror can propose an ODC amount for commercial repairs.  

Question:  Are commercial repairs covered by an IDIQ task order?  Please clarify.

  Answer:  No, commercial repairs are under core services not IDIQ.  The amount of work that may need to be obtained commercially will depend on the Contractor’s technical approach.   Attachment J-2 provides the total repairs for NASA per year.
339. Reference SOW 1.0, 2.0 and Attachment J-3.  There are many requirements for computers, workstations, printers, plotters and other automated data processing equipment (ADPE) in SOW sections 1 and 2 and throughout other SOW sections.  While there are computers and printers listed in Attachment J-3, it is impossible to determine where the equipment is assigned and its intended purpose.

a.  Question:  Does NASA plan to furnish (within reason) all the necessary ADPE for contract performance?  Please clarify.

        Answer:  The final RFP, Clause G.6 will be revised to include network connectivity to the NASA corporate network, computers and software, LAN lines and desk phones.  All other equipment unless listed in Attachment J-3 (IAGP) will need to be provided by the contractor.

b.  Question:  There is no plotter listed in J-3 for drawing production and GIS work products.  Will a GFE plotter be available?

 Answer:  No.  A GFE plotter will not be available.  Please see answer to Question a. above.

c. Question:  Other government agencies prohibit the connection of a contractor-owned computer to the government’s network.  This prohibition includes disks, storage drives, and external devices of all types and in some cases precludes data downloads from contractor operated external systems.  Does NASA WFF have such a prohibition?  Please clarify constraints on Contractor-furnished ADPE if it is required.

  Answer:  To clarify, in the final RFP, SOW 1.3.4, second paragraph will be revised to read as follows:

“For non-Government furnished information technology resources, the Contractor shall meet the requirements of the NASA Minimum Interoperability Software Suite and the Minimum Hardware Configurations standards that are referenced online at http://www.nasa.gov/offices/ocio/itsecurity/.  Office Automation generated products communicated electronically to and from Contractor owned or operated information systems must conform to minimum standards as required by the NASA CIO and defined in the executive notices issued by that office within 3 months of the issuance of such notices.  In addition, the daily operation of the Contractor’s information technology resources should, under no circumstances, impact the operation of NASA network resources beyond that which is caused by the transmission or receipt of (deliverable products) or administrative communications (email) which are compliant with the NASA Minimum Interoperability Software Suite Standard.  NASA network resources are the NASA Corporate Network and interconnected NASA data networks, including WAN, remote access and guest services, as well as those systems utilizing or connected to the data networks.”  

340.  Reference Attachment J-3.  The list of GFE seems to be short.  For example, firefighter coats, trousers, boots, gloves, helment, embedded comm accessories and other apparatus (SCBA, etc.) can easily exceed $7,500 or more per fire fighter.  None of this equipment is listed, yet it is highly likely that the government has paid for replacement sets sometime within the last five years or so.  In addition, key firefighting emergency equipment, i.e., confined space equipment, jaws of life, high angle rescue equipment, water rescue, etc. are not identified in J-3.  SOW paragraph 11.10.1 states, “The Contractor shall provide all equipment and expendable supplies that are required to fulfill requirements of this SOW other than those provided as GFE.”  Should the contractor assume that it must furnish all the equipment (sans fire trucks) and supplies necessary for two fire companies from the contract start?  Please clarify fire department equipment availability.

Answer:   See answer to Question 273.
341.  Reference SOW 3.4.4. Provide 24/7/365 O&M of the EMCS.
a.  Question:  Are the consoles collocated?  If not, in what facilities are the consoles located?  Please clarify. 
      Answer:  No, the consoles are not collocated.  One console is located in Bldg. F-16 and the other console is located in D-50
b.   Question:  Is staff required at one or both consoles to monitor operations 24/7/365?  Please clarify.
       Answer:  Staffing will depend on the offeror’s approach; however, consoles provide redundancy for each other.  All alarms will be visible from either one of the consoles.
343.  Reference SOW 3.5.4 and J-2 Section 3.5.4.  

Question: Are the elevators listed passenger elevators or equipment lifting devices?  Please clarify.

  Answer:  All the elevators listed are passenger elevators although some may be used for equipment transport between building floors.

344.  Reference SOW 7.1 and J-2 Section 7.1. 
        Question:   For sampling requirements identified as daily, does daily refer to Monday-Friday or 7 days per week?  Please clarify.

          Answer:  Any requirement listed as daily in J-2 Section 7.1 is 7 days per week.

345.  Reference SOW 15.4.  The referenced paragraph heading states the work is IDIQ.  The first paragraph states that inventory requirements, requisition processing, etc. are addressed in previous SOW paragraphs and these referenced paragraphs are not IDIQ.  This conflict makes SOW 15.4 confusing and ambiguous.  As written, all work associated with requisitioning, receiving, storing, issuing and disposing of hazardous materials is performed via an IDIQ task order. 

Question:  Is this interpretation correct?  If not, please clarify what work is performed via IDIQ and what work is not.

  Answer:  No, this interpretation is not correct.  Only the support required for the Hazardous Materials Management System would be IDIQ.  Per SOW 15.4, the support may include “material labeling, data entry, and Material Safety Data Sheet archiving of hazardous materials arriving at WFF.”  For clarification purposes, the final RFP title of SOW 15.4 will be revised to read “Hazardous Material Management System (IDIQ)”.  In addition the final RFP will be revised to delete SOW 15.4 requirement (b) “Submit orders for, receive, issue, store, and transfer HAZMAT.  Ensure adequate quantities of HAZMAT are available at all times without creating excess requiring disposal.

346.  Reference SOW 15.6.  “The Contractor shall provide the necessary resources to provide x-ray services for all incoming material, supplies and small packages.”  

Question:  Will the existing x-ray machine be turned over to the contractor for its exclusive use?  Please clarify.

  Answer:  Yes, the x-ray machine used for all incoming material, supplies and small packages listed is Attachment J-3 as IAGP and therefore will be turned over to the Contractor for its exclusive use.

347.  Reference SOW 15.8.1.3 d. d.  “Provide towing for vehicles within 150 miles of WFF.”  There is no towing vehicle or wrecker listed as GFE.  Presumably the contractor can provide this service via a contractor-owned wrecker at the site or local commercial service.  Please confirm or clarify.  

Question:  How many vehicles requiring towing annually?  

    Answer:  A 2007 rollback (lift truck) is included in Attachment J-3 as IAGP.  The ECN number is 3081149.  Approximately 10 vehicles per year require towing.

348.  Reference SOW 15.10.  It is our understanding that all work associated with planning, coordination and execution of office moves is IDIQ.  

         Question:  Is this interpretation correct?  Please clarify.

          Answer:  Yes.  All requirements listed in SOW 15.10 are IDIQ.
350.  Reference:  Section H.4 page 45 2nd paragraph states:  “the contractor’s use of such property for such purposes shall not exceed 25 percent……

Please Clarify:  What does the 25 percent restriction refer to?

  Answer:  Non-Government use shall not exceed 25 percent of the total use of Government and commercial work performed.  The final RFP H.4, 2nd paragraph, 6th sentence will be revised to read as follows:  “Non-Government use shall not exceed 25 percent of the total use of Government and commercial work performed and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this contract, as well as the following terms and conditions.”
352.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-003 RFP Sec. L page 165 paragraph (d) ELEMENTS OF COST BY SOW WBS LEVEL 3 reads: “….. A separate Exhibit 2 shall be submitted for the Base Period and each individual Option Period at NASA SOW WBS 1.0, 2.0 ….”

Question: Shall the quoter create one tab per SOW WBS per contract year?

 Answer:  Yes, for both Exhibit 2 and 2A there shall be separate tabs (worksheets) for each core SOW WBS per contract   period (not contract year).  The Offerors need to fill-in the WBS No. in the blank at the top of the exhibit .   The final RFP, Sections L.24.2 (d) and (e) second sentence will be revised as follows:
                    FROM: Separate 
              TO: Separately identified and labeled

353.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-003 RFP Sec. L page 165 paragraph (d) ELEMENTS OF COST BY SOW WBS LEVEL 3 reads: “….. A separate Exhibit 2 shall be submitted for the Base Period and each individual Option Period at NASA SOW WBS 1.0, 2.0 ….”  

Question: Shall the quoter assign the tab name for each separate Exhibit 2?

   
  Answer:  Yes, the Offeror may assign the tab name for each separate tab (worksheet) for each Exhibit 2 and 2A.
354.  Reference:  146923-DRAFT-002-003 RFP Sec. L page 166, paragraph (h) SUMMARY OF RECURRING OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODCs).   The second paragraph in this section reads: “If all recurring ODCs are included in your indirect expenses, DO NOT remove them from your indirect pools and include them in this exhibit.” 

Concern:  If this cost is already part of the indirect rate as a percentage of direct cost, we might double account for these expenses if we roll the Dollar values from Exhibit 4 to Exhibit 1 for ODCs. 

Question: In the case the recurring ODCs are part of the indirect rates, will the Dollar values in this exhibit need to roll over to Exhibit 1 Summary of Cost under ODCs?
   Answer:  No.  In the case where recurring ODCs are part of the indirect rates, there would be no costs populated on the Recurring ODCs chart. 

355. Reference:  File: 146923-DRAFT-002-007, Attachment J-4, paragraph (1) PRIME DIRECT LABOR RATE MATRIX.   This paragraph reads: “The Contractor shall not exceed the direct labor rates as specified below for pricing all services or supply or construction task orders.”  

Question:  Will the government allow for loaded rate increases due to Wage Determinations wage/benefit increases beyond the not-to-exceed rates for the option periods?

  
  Answer:  There are no loaded labor rates in Attachment J-4 paragraph (1) PRIME DIRECT LABOR RATE MATRIX.  If direct labor rate adjustments are required in response to updated Wage Determinations/Wage Decisions, Attachment J-4, which applies only to the IDIQ portion of the contract, will be modified, as applicable.
356.  Reference: File: 146923-DRAFT-002-007, Attachment J-4, paragraph (2) PRIME INDIRECT COST RATE MATRIX.  This paragraph reads: “The Contractor shall not exceed the indirect rates as specified below for pricing all services or supply or construction task orders.” 
Question: Will the government allow for increases in indirect rates based on audited incurred cost submissions through DCAA?
  Answer:  No, increases in indirect rates will be allowable costs for billing purposes; however, matrices will not be updated to reflect those increases.    

376.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-016, Tab: Ex3 Source of Personnel.  Rows 32/33 show the labor category coding.  There are cases where a labor category might fall into two codes.  For instance, Union Incumbent personnel might fall into codes “I” for incumbent and code “U” for union. 
Question – Should we use two labor categories coding to reflect whether the incumbent personnel is union/exempt?
  Answer:  The block could have more than one Labor Category Code.  Final RFP Exhibit 3 will be revised to reflect this change.  
377.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-016, Tabs: Exh10 FB Non-Exempt, and Ex10 FB Exempt.    Columns C12/D12 of the tabs read: “Percentage and Cost per hour of Employee Contribution”.  However, the last sentence in the Notes (row 40) section reads: “Only company costs should be shown …”   
Question:  Although the Note’s section reads: “Only company cost should be shown”, should we still include the employee contribution cost per columns C12/D12?

 Answer:    The NOTE at the bottom of the page will be revised to delete the last sentence from the NOTE.  A footnote will be added to the “Percentage and Cost per Hour of Company Contribution” that identifies the sentence “Only company costs should be shown, if a specific benefit item is contributory by the employee, explain separately” only applies to that column.

378.  Reference:  146923-DRAFT-002-016, Tab: Exh 6 Major Material Items.  Concern:  If we only list major material items, the total in this Exhibit might not match the total Materials listed in Exhibit 1.  
Question:  The title reads Major Material Items, shall the offerors only list major material items?

  Answer:  Exhibit 6 shall include all material items.  The word “major” will be deleted from the exhibit title.   Final RFP Exhibit 6 will be revised to reflect this change. 

379.  Reference:  146923-DRAFT-002-016, Tab: Exh 6 Major Material Items.  
Question:  What is the dollar threshold for a Material to be considered Major?

   Answer:  N/A.  See answer to Question #378.

